
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                           

MEETING AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

Monday, January 13, 2020 
6:30 P.M. 

MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 
19 E. CHICAGO AVENUE, HINSDALE, IL 

(Tentative & Subject to Change) 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2.  ROLL CALL  
 
3. MINUTES – Review and approval of the minutes from the December 4, 2019 HPC 

meeting. 
 

4.  PUBLIC HEARING – CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS  
a)   Case HPC-11-2019 – 244 E. 1st Street - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 

demolish and construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic District. 
b) Case HPC-09-2019 – 417 S. Elm St. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 

construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic District.  
c)  Case HPC-12-2019 – 304 S. Lincoln St. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness 

for a retroactive permit for work to a garage attached to a landmarked house. 
 

5.  DISCUSSION 
a)  Historic Preservation Commission Title 14 Regulations Action Summary Review  

  
6.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
7.   OTHER BUSINESS 
  
8.   ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend any meetings and who require 
certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in these 
meetings, or who have questions regarding accessibility of the meetings or the facilities, 
are requested to contact Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or by TDD 
at 789-7022 promptly to allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons.  website:  www.villageofhinsdale.org 
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MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

December 4, 2019  

Memorial Hall – Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale 

6:30 P.M. 

             

Chairman Bohnen called the meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) to 

order at 6:30 p.m. on December 4, 2019, in Memorial Hall in the Memorial Building, 19 

East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale IL. 

 

Present:   Chairman Bohnen, Commissioner Weinberger, Commissioner Williams, 

Commissioner Prisby, Commissioner Braden, and Commissioner 

Haarlow  

Absent:   Commissioner Gonzalez  

Also Present: Chan Yu, Village Planner   

  

 

Sign Permit Review 

Case A-33-2019 – 12 E. 1st Street – Glimpse Vision – 1 New Wall Sign (illuminated) 
 

Chairman Bohnen asked if the applicant intends to paint the front of the building. 

 

The representative for Glimpse Vision reviewed that the building has already been painted 

a dark grey and plan to freshen up the front façade since it’s already been 2 years since the 

last coat. 

 

Chairman Bohnen expressed a concern about the intensity of the lighting. 

 

The applicant said that he resubmitted for lighting with a 3,000K color.  

 

Commissioner Weinberger asked if the sign is code compliant. 

 

Chan replied yes, it is under 25 SF. 

 

Commissioner Prisby stated that the sign is too white for him. 

 

Commissioner Weinberger agreed. 

 

Commissioner Prisby asked if the sign lettering would be flush with the backing. 

 

The applicant said no, it’s made with HDU so it appears to be an engraved wood sign and 

the white backing would be recessed and has a texture to it. 

 

Commissioner Prisby stated that he has no issues with the gooseneck lighting, however, 

wished the white sign backing was not so white considering the color of the building. 

Approved 



 

 

 

The applicant replied that he could look at exploring other options to tone it down a little 

bit.   

 

Commissioner Prisby stated that he would not be opposed to a color that ties more closely to 

the gold and/or hue of the logo. 

 

Commissioner Braden asked if the door would be branded as well. 
 

The applicant replied there will be a small vinyl piece smaller than the existing one.   

 

With no other questions, a motion to approve the sign application with the suggestion that 

the backing is not so bright, was unanimously approved, 4-0 (3 absent). 

 

  

Sign Permit Review 

Case A-35-2019 – 14 W. 1st Street – Work Shop – 1 New Wall Sign 

 

The owner of the store Work Shop presented the request and explained the intent to paint 

the background a crème color and remove the raised “Tulips and Tigers” sign material.   

 

Chairman Bohnen asked if they she was aware that it is a Zook building. 

 

The applicant replied no, but thanked Chairman Bohnen for the information. 

 

Commissioner Prisby asked Chan about the proposed 32 SF, which is over the 25 SF per the 

ordinance. 

 

Chan replied that the area is up to the building owner for allocation.  So if there’s a 

separate tenant space with its own entrance, the space has 25 SF as well. To this end, the 

building owner can allocate 50 SF of signage and it’s up to them how they choose to divide 

the SF. 

 

Chairman Bohnen asked if there’s a difference between resident and commercial space. 

 

Chan replied that he spoke with the building owner and he does not have a plan for the 2nd 

floor space currently. 

 

Chairman Bohnen stated the upper floor is rented out as residential, and has been for the 

last 30 years. 

 

Chan replied that the building owner did not inform him of that, and in this case, the 

proposed sign is too large.  Chan asked a follow up question if it was occupied when Tigers 

and Tulips was on the 1st floor.   

 



 

 

Chairman Bohnen replied yes, as he is aware of for the last 30 years. 

 

Chan questioned how the Tigers and Tulips sign was approved. 

 

Chairman Bohnen suggested that is something that might be in the records, and is bringing 

up as a note to the Plan Commission. 

 

With no further questions, a motion to approve the sign application as submitted, with the 

condition that a variation was approved, was unanimously approved, 5-0 (2 absent). 

(Commissioner Weinberger wanted to note that the HPC was sympathetic since the 

proposed sign fits the architecture of the building.) 

 

 

Public Hearing  - Certificate of Appropriateness  

Case HPC-10-2019 – 14 Orchard Place - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 

construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic District. 

 

At the December 4, HPC public hearing, the homeowner and architect reviewed the 

application and introduced the project to answer questions.  

 

Please refer to Attachment 1, for the transcript for Public Hearing Case HPC-10-2019  

 

A motion to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness was unanimously approved, with 

the condition the owners meet with the architects, 5-0 (2 absent). 

 
 

Public Hearing  Discussion -Certificate of Appropriateness  

Case HPC-11-2019 – 244 E. 1st Street - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 

construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic District. 

 

A motion to review this item as a discussion item was unanimously approved, 5-0 (2 

absent). 

 

The architects representing the homeowner of 244 E. 1st Street presented the plans for the 

new proposed house. There was a disagreement in regards to the review process between 

the architects, Village staff and a few HPC members; and the nature of the feedback and 

building permit process ensued for approximately 55 minutes.   

 

 

Public Comment – 

A few students attended the HPC meeting as part of their high school (Hinsdale Central) 

AP Gov. class and asked if they could interview a commissioner later. Commissioner 

Haarlow volunteered to help. 

 

 



 

 

 

Other Business – 

Chairman Bohnen referenced the commercial building at 24 W. Hinsdale Avenue, and 

asked Chan what the process moving forward would be for the stained front facade.  

 

Chan replied that the applicant may apply for a major adjustment to the exterior 

appearance plan, and that would appear before the Village Board first.  The Village Board 

could deny, approve or refer it to the Plan Commission.     

 

Additional review process questions and discussion regarding Case HPC-11-2019 – 244 E. 

1st Street ensued.   

 

 

Adjournment 

 

The HPC unanimously agreed to adjourn at 8:29 PM on December 4, 2019. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Chan Yu, Village Planner 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

        BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
       HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

IN THE MATTER OF:          )
                           )
CASE NO. HPC-10-2019       )        

                           )
14 ORCHARD PLACE           ) 

         REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony 

taken at the Public Hearing on the Certificate 

of Appropriateness in the above-entitled matter 

before the Hinsdale Historic Preservation 

Commission at 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, 

Illinois, on the 4th day of December, 2019, at 

6:50 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

     MR. JOHN BOHNEN, Chairman;

     MS. ALEXIS BRADEN, Member; 

     MR. BILL HAARLOW, Member;

     MR. JIM PRISBY, Member;

     MS. SHANNON WEINBERGER, Member.

  

Attachment 1 - HPC-10-2019 
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ALSO PRESENT:1

         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner;2

         MR. JOHN M. BELCHER, ALA, NCARB,3
              JMB Architects, Ltd.;

4
         MS. SIMMI KAPUR, Homeowner;

5
         MR. SUTEJ KAPUR, Homeowner.
                       * * *6

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Okay.  Now we are7
going to move into a public hearing on8
14 Orchard Place.  Anybody that's going to speak9
on behalf of 14 Orchard Place, please rise to be06:50:02PM 10
sworn in.11

(Mr. John Belcher, Ms. Simmi Kapur,12
               and Mr. Sutej Kapur were sworn.)13

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Whoever is going to14
speak on behalf of Orchard Place, please15
approach the podium and give us your name.16

MR. KAPUR:  Hello.17
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Hello.  You are?18
MR. KAPUR:  I am Sutej Kapur.  My wife19

and I are the owners of 14 Orchard, the lot.06:50:56PM 20
And John is our architect.21

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  And John is the22
3

architect, good.  Thank you for coming.1
We have determined that the lot is2

110?3
MR. YU:  Yes.4
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  It was a subdivided5

lot, 110, even though it's not shown as such on6
the plat.7

MR. YU:  There is a subdivision.8
Everything else is 110 except for the outdated9
plat of survey, which shows I think 100.  But06:51:24PM 10
everything else, plans, the subdivision that's11
in there, shows 100.12

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  So the outdated plat13
of survey was drawn prior to the subdivision?14

MS. WEINBERGER:  It has a different15
address.16

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Maybe with two lots17
when the gentleman owned it?  Was it one vacant18
lot there?19

MR. SUTEJ:  I can help clarify.  So the06:52:00PM 20
owner of the lot, so the ex-owner --21

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Right.22

4

MR. SUTEJ:  He's the current owner and1
resident of this lot just south of it.2

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  The McCleary's.3
MR. SUTEJ:  Yes.  And they wanted for4

aesthetic reasons a few extra feet on their lot5
and so they resubdivided it, and that's how we6
agreed on 110.7

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  So they bought the8
property and then resubdivided the property?9

MR. SUTEJ:  That's right.06:52:26PM 10
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  And somewhere in here11

did I read that you are not going to be the12
residents in this house?13

MR. KAPUR:  No.14
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  You are?15
MR. SUTEJ:  We are.16
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  You are.  I thought17

you were not going to be.  I must have misread18
that.19

So you are aware that this is in a06:52:53PM 20
historic district?21

MR. SUTEJ:  Yes.22

5

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Did you take into1
consideration that when you and your architect2
designed the home?  Because we try and get folks3
to come in early on to talk to them prior to4
getting too far down the road on design, so that5
we have homes that are compatible in the6
historic district.  You were not aware of that?7

MR. BELCHER:  I can answer.8
MR. SUTEJ:  Yes.9
MR. BELCHER:  So my name is John06:53:38PM 10

Belcher with JMB Architects.  We have designed11
numerous homes in Hinsdale.  This was the first12
one that came up in the historical district13
within --  There was another one maybe 10 years14
ago that we did in the firm.15

We always look at the neighborhood.16
We always look at the adjoining lots that are,17
that are attached basically adjacent to the home18
and also the neighborhood.  So we look at the19
aesthetics.  We look at the proportions.  We06:54:06PM 20
work with the wish list from the client to21
really kind of work with the proportions and the22
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overall look of the home to create something1
that works best for the community and also the2
wish list.3

There is historical --  There is a4
sympathetic rule that we have in the office to5
really kind of look at every single project in6
the same way that we do if it was our own7
project.  Simmi and Sam came to us in regards to8
looking at this as their own home.  They worked9
with the homeowner next door to actually gain06:54:45PM 10
some extra square footage to create the11
proportions of the home that they wanted.12

I know it's in a historical13
district, and we are trying to work with this.14
If there is some suggestions that the committee15
has, we can take a look at that.16

But we have worked with this for a17
while trying to make sure it worked for the home18
owners, for Sam and Simmi, and also to work with19
the community.  So if you have any suggestions06:55:12PM 20
or questions we can answer, I can gladly help21
you with that.22

7

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Comment?1
MR. HAARLOW:  Are there particular2

aspects about the design that you think speak to3
the historic nature of the district?4

MR. BELCHER:  Well, it's a traditional5
style that we looked at as a French country home6
with a modern transitional look to it.  A lot of7
the homes --  We have done other homes in8
historical districts in Oak Park and other areas9
where they look at it as they don't want someone06:55:55PM 10
to copy an old home the wrong way.  So by doing11
that, they look at the fact that there is going12
to be new construction in the areas within, if13
it's a 100-year-old town, 150-year-old town,14
they know there are going to be teardowns sooner15
than later.  So they want to make sure that16
there is a variety of traditional transitional17
flavor to the architecture that doesn't try to18
copy exact transitional flavor in a bad way.19

So that there is always economics06:56:30PM 20
in everything to build and design a home.  Some21
of the older character, sometimes it costs a22

8

little more.  We look at transitional materials1
and also the style to kind of relate that to2
something that has the efficiencies of today's3
standards and also the proportions that would4
relate to today's living.5

Does that answer the question?6
MR. HAARLOW:  Well, so we are usually7

looking at color palette, materials, things like8
that.  That's what I'm asking rather than just9
sort of a general philosophical approach to how06:57:09PM 10
you treat buildings.  But what in particular11
about this home addresses the historic nature?12

MR. BELCHER:  What exactly does it13
relate to?14

MR. HAARLOW:  Yes, in terms of the15
surrounding homes and that type of thing, with16
materials, color palette, and so on.17

MR. BELCHER:  I mean it is a18
traditional style.  It has traditional19
materials.  There is no synthetic materials06:57:37PM 20
except for the roof itself.  There is natural21
stone and stucco, of course, and wood trim, if22

9

that's what you are asking for.  There are other1
synthetic materials out there that we are not2
introducing here.  It's all natural materials.3

MR. PRISBY:  John, there have been some4
other applicants in the past couple of years5
that have actually come with samples so we could6
see what's the stone someone is going to use,7
what's the shingle color.  I think those are the8
kinds of things that maybe you were referencing,9
to be able to actually see something more06:58:24PM 10
than -- as much as I appreciate a color11
rendering, right? -- it's a brown roof, it's12
brown fascia.  It's a stone that on CAD systems,13
right, it's a hatch pattern; right?  But what is14
the actual stone, mortar color; right?  Is there15
a selected paint color or paint chip, something16
we could see especially when it comes to these17
elevations.18

So it's fairly monochrome.  It's19
all variations of some kind of brown or beige.06:58:54PM 20
And I'd kind of like to see how all those come21
together, if anything.22
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MR. BELCHER:  We can definitely, if we1
can put this together maybe for the next2
meeting.  But we can come up with a board -- we3
have done that before -- that shows all the4
different materials.5

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  We would love to see6
that.  It's typically what we are looking for,7
as well as photographs of the homes on the8
street, too; so that we have some notion of how9
it does fit in there.06:59:25PM 10

MR. PRISBY:  It's actually in the11
packet.12

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  I missed that.13
MR. PRISBY:  They are in there, John.14

If you see this, there are actually numbers of15
them in the next two pages.16

MS. WEINBERGER:  I actually really like17
this.  This is helpful.18

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Okay.  I got it.  I19
got it.  Thanks.06:59:45PM 20

MS. WEINBERGER:  I mean I would have,21
looking at the photographs, I would have said22

11

that this home seems much larger than the1
neighborhood.  But I will say, assuming this is2
correct, it really isn't.3

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  You probably have4
greater width than most of the lots over there5
at 110 feet.  That would be an unusually large,6
wide lot.7

MR. SUTEJ:  It's larger than the ones8
that are across, but it's not too much wider9
than the ones that are on the same side of the07:00:20PM 10
street.11

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Is that it?12
MR. SUTEJ:  That's correct.  Our13

neighbor, the ex-owner, has a lot now that's14
actually wider than this.15

MR. PRISBY:  And it's fairly empty the16
one side, if I remember correctly.  Is it like17
open, the lot to the south?18

MR. SUTEJ:  Correct.  So it's closer to19
us.07:00:39PM 20

MR. PRISBY:  You have a lot of property21
to the south of that structure.22

12

MR. SUTEJ:  That's correct.1
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Well, do you want2

to --3
MR. PRISBY:  I'm not sure what anyone4

else has to say.5
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  -- see boards and6

things?7
MR. PRISBY:  I would prefer to see some8

materials.9
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  It's what we are used07:01:12PM 10

to seeing.  Again, I don't know when or how this11
process began for you, but typically we like to12
see our people coming in on the early stages of13
design before they have got all the drawings14
done and everything so that our architects,15
particularly, can have some input.  Again, we16
are advisory.17

MR. SUTEJ:  When we submitted our plans18
to the Village for approval, the checklist or19
the understanding we were given was a plan went07:01:47PM 20
or a copy went to the historical committee21
already.  And so we found out a little bit late22

13

in the game that we have this hearing.  So sort1
of we learned that a little bit later, but we2
did submit it before.3

Can she address the aesthetic point4
that this gentleman was asking?5

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Sure, please.6
MS. KAPUR:  Hi.  Good evening,7

everybody.  My name is Simmi Kapur.  I just8
wanted to address --9

Can you find that for me, please,07:02:21PM 10
the one with the photographs of the adjacent11
homes.12

I just wanted to address the issue13
about the color of the home.  The home adjacent14
to our lot, the McCleary's home that is to the15
south, is yellow.  The home on the north16
adjacent to us is a red brick.  So we chose this17
color scheme.  We didn't want to go with gray,18
black, white.  We thought it would stand out too19
much in between those two homes.  So that's why07:02:54PM 20
we chose a beige, kind of monochromatic, so that21
it blends in with the home adjustment north and22
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south; so I just want to address that one issue.1
MR. PRISBY:  I totally understand that2

and appreciate that, right?  But when it comes3
to specific materials and paint colors, there4
are some that work together and some don't; and5
that's the concern.  We want to see those6
materials to make sure that they do all work7
together.8

MS. KAPUR:  I understand that.  And9
perhaps maybe it would be my recommendation if,07:03:24PM 10
someone working with your team and wanting to11
really working hard to meet your requirements,12
your aesthetic requirements, perhaps that should13
be in the list of requirements for future people14
who are in our --15

MR. PRISBY:  We are working on that.16
MS. KAPUR:  Yes.  I would have happily,17

very, very happily brought a board with our18
materials from our builder.  It would have been19
very easy to do.  But nowhere in the application07:03:52PM 20
form or on your website, which has a very old21
application form, prior to 2018.  I would22

15

happily have brought that board to you.1
Because as you can understand, we2

are happy, we are excited, and we really would3
love to move forward with our project.  So had4
we known that, we would have definitely brought5
it to this evening's proceedings.6

MR. PRISBY:  We are in the process of7
making those changes right now.  I think that is8
part of what we were working on is --  You are9
at a juncture now where you are just waiting to07:04:26PM 10
pull a permit.  So feedback from us11
architecturally, when it comes to streetscape12
and what's in the neighborhood and what we would13
like to see, we are actually right now on the14
opposite, absolute opposite end of where we want15
to be.16

So we would like to be able to get17
in front of people before they even put pen to18
paper and say, look, yes, these are the things19
we would like you to consider as part of your07:04:49PM 20
design as you start the design to be able to21
say, look, maybe there are versions of a brown22

16

or off white or whatever we want to call it.1
Right?  Do we think on this block you should do2
more 2-story, more story and a half, maintain3
the streetscape as far as setbacks?  Maybe4
consider this for a driveway or for landscaping,5
and really put you in tune with what's on that6
block, what's in that neighborhood, what's7
across the street; so that you have that in mind8
when you start the design process.9

We recognize that right now the07:05:21PM 10
current system that's in place is doing a11
disservice to everyone, right?  Right now you12
are coming in, looking to pull a permit and go.13
You have already spent your money on14
architecture, right?  It's almost too late to15
have these discussions in my opinion, right?16

I would still like to see some17
materials to make that suggestion, make that18
recommendation; right?  But we are working on19
changes rapidly at the moment with some special07:05:47PM 20
meetings we have had in the last month and a21
half to make some serious changes to the22

17

application and to the process to get you and1
anyone in the future in front of us much more2
quickly and at the beginning of the project.3

MS. KAPUR:  In terms of sequencing of4
events for this project, we couldn't get here5
tonight until we had approval for our permit.6

MR. PRISBY:  And that's what we are7
changing.8

MS. KAPUR:  Yes.9
MR. BELCHER:  So the process would be07:06:16PM 10

to bring a sample board of some, the colors and11
relationship --12

MR. PRISBY:  Approved materials for the13
exterior.14

MR. BELCHER:  Okay.15
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  So as a Commission,16

you have the choice of postponing your vote or17
to put a motion forth for conditional18
Certificate of Appropriateness predicated on19
seeing materials at the next meeting.07:06:46PM 20

MR. PRISBY:  Why are you looking at me?21
MR. BELCHER:  I have a suggestion.  If22
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it's just colors, with the way the weather is1
and how things are starting, is there a process2
where we can start the project so they can start3
and then bring the colors in?  We know how4
construction starts late in the year, they have5
their approved plans.6

Is this something that can be7
approved in the process that will allow them to8
start the project and then bring the colors in9
at the next meeting?07:07:24PM 10

MR. PRISBY:  We have done where in the11
past they are required to meet with Frank and I12
on a separate meeting onsite or in an office13
somewhere.14

MS. WEINBERGER:  Approve with15
conditions.16

MR. PRISBY:  That we would make17
recommendations at that time.  And at least that18
would not delay them.  I really don't see any19
other choice until we actually get these changes07:07:46PM 20
put in place to get in front of these things,21
and this is where we are.22

19

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  So a motion, please.1
MS. WEINBERGER:  I move to approve on2

the condition that the owners meet with our3
architects, approve the application for4
Certificate of Appropriateness for 14 Orchard5
Place.6

MR. HAARLOW:  I will second.7
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  All in favor?8
MS. WEINBERGER:  Aye.9
MS. BRADEN:  Aye.07:08:30PM 10
MR. HAARLOW:  Aye.11
MR. PRISBY:  Aye.12
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Motion carries.13

                  Thank you for coming.14
                  * * *15

(Which were all the proceedings had16
               in the above-entitled cause.)17

18
19
20
21
22

20
STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss.
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

         I, JANICE H. HEINEMANN, CSR, RDR, CRR,
do hereby certify that I am a court reporter
doing business in the State of Illinois, that I
reported in shorthand the testimony given at the
hearing of said cause, and that the foregoing is
a true and correct transcript of my shorthand
notes so taken as aforesaid.

         __________________________________
          Janice H. Heinemann CSR, RDR, CRR
          License No. 084-001391
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   January 13, 2020 

TO:   Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  244 E. 1st Street – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness to Demolish and 

Construct a New House in the Robbins Park Historic District – Case HPC-11-2019 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Kevin Geist of Michael Abraham Architecture, 

requesting approval for a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish and construct a new house in the 

Robbins Park Historic District. Per the Village Code, no permits shall be issued for a new structure located 

in a designated historic district without the rendering of a final decision by the Historic Preservation 

Commission (HPC) on an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness.  

The subject property is located on a corner lot at 1st Street and S. Elm Street. The applicant would like to 

seek the right to construct a new Code compliant house (attached). The subject property is located in the 

R-1 Single Family Residential District and borders the same to the north, south, east and west. Per the 

table of compliance, the legal nonconforming lot is 148.50’ wide and 168.85’ deep for an area of 

approximately 25,063 SF. The applicant has indicated that they are seeking early feedback from the HPC, 

thus, the submitted plans and listed materials are preliminary in nature.   

At the December 4, HPC meeting, the applicant presented the proposed elevation and site plans. Since 

then, the applicant has submitted a demo and building permit, and has responded to the only zoning 

comment by the building department by removing the wing wall from the north east corner of the foyer 

exterior wall. Unrelated to the building permit review, the applicant has also changed the north elevation 

material from stucco to stone.   

Process 

Pursuant to Title 14, Section 14-5-1: (B) Historic District: No alteration shall be allowed to, and no permits 

shall be issued for, the alteration, demolition, signage, or any other physical modifications of the exterior 

architectural appearance of any structure, building, site, or area located in a designated historic district 

without the rendering of a final decision by the commission on an application for a certificate of 

appropriateness. The final decision of the commission shall be advisory only. 
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Attachment 3 -  Robbins Park Historic District Map 
Attachment 4 -  Title 14, Section 14-5-2: Criteria (A) and (B) 
Attachment 5 -  244 E. 1st Street Aerial View 
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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Attachment 4        CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 

14-5-2: CRITERIA: 
 
All applications for a certificate of appropriateness shall conform to the applicable standards in this 
section. 

A. General Standards: 

1. Alterations that do not affect any essential architectural or historic features of a structure or building 
as viewed from a public or private street ordinarily should be permitted. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a structure, building, or site and its environment 
should not be destroyed. No alteration or demolition of any historic material or distinctive 
architectural feature should be permitted except when necessary to assure an economically viable 
use of a site. 

3. All structures, buildings, sites, and areas should be recognized as products of their own time. 
Alterations that have no historical basis and that seek to create an earlier appearance than the true 
age of the property are discouraged. 

4. Changes that may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a structure, building, or site and its environment. These changes may have acquired 
significance in their own right, and this significance should be recognized and respected when 
dealing with a specific architectural period. 

5. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a structure, 
building, site, or area should ordinarily be maintained and preserved. 

6. Deteriorated architectural features should be repaired rather than replaced, whenever possible. In 
the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 
composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing 
architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by 
historic, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the availability of 
different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

7. The surface cleaning of structures and buildings should be undertaken with the gentlest means 
possible. Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the structures and buildings 
should be avoided. 

8. New structures or buildings, or alterations to sites should not be discouraged when such structures 
or alterations do not destroy significant historical or architectural features and are compatible with 
the size, scale, color, material, and character of the site, neighborhood, or environment. 

9. Whenever possible, new structures or buildings, or alterations to the existing conditions of sites 
should be done in such a manner that, if such new structures or alterations were to be removed in 
the future, the essential form and integrity of the original structure, building, site, or area would be 
unimpaired. 

10. Any permitted alteration or demolition should promote the purposes of this Title and general welfare 
of the Village and its residents. 
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11. Demolition should not be permitted if a structure, building, or site is economically viable in its 
present condition or could be economically viable after completion of appropriate alterations, even if 
demolition would permit a more profitable use of such site. 

B. Design Standards: 

1. Height: The height of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the height of the original 
landmark. The height of a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after any proposed 
alteration or construction within an historic district should be compatible with the style and character 
of the structure or building and with surrounding structures and buildings in an historic district. 

2. Relationship Between Mass And Open Space: The relationship between a landmark and adjacent 
open spaces after its alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. 
The relationship between a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship between surrounding structures, buildings 
and adjacent open spaces within such historic district. 

3. Relationship Among Height, Width And Scale: The relationship among the height, width, and scale of 
a landmark after alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. The 
relationship among height, width, and scale of a structure or building after an alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship among height, width, and scale of 
surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

4. Directional Expression: The directional expressions of a landmark after alteration, whether its vertical 
or horizontal positioning, should be compatible with the directional expression of the original 
landmark. The directional expression of a structure or building after alteration within an historic 
district should be compatible with the directional expression of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

5. Roof Shape: The roof shape of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the roof shape 
of the original landmark. The roof shape of a structure, building, or object after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the roof shape of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

6. Architectural Details, General Designs, Materials, Textures, And Colors: The architectural details, 
general design, materials, textures, and colors of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of the original landmark. 
The architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a structure or building 
after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the architectural details, general 
design, materials, textures, and colors of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic 
district. 

7. Landscape And Appurtenances: The landscape and appurtenances, including without limitation 
signs, fences, accessory structures, and pavings, of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the landscape and appurtenances of the original landmark. The landscape and appurtenances 
of a structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the 
landscape and appurtenances of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

8. Construction: New construction in an historic district should be compatible with the architectural 
styles, design standards and streetscapes within such historic districts. 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   January 13, 2020 

TO:   Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  417 S. Elm Street – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness to Construct a New 

House in the Robbins Park Historic District – Case HPC-09-2019 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Rebrag, Inc., requesting approval for a Certificate 
of Appropriateness to construct a new house on a vacant residential lot in the Robbins Park Historic 
District. Per the Village Code, no permits shall be issued for a new structure located in a designated historic 
district without the rendering of a final decision by the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) on an 
application for a Certificate of Appropriateness.  
 
The subject property is located on an interior lot on Elm Street. The applicant would like to seek the right 
to construct a new Code compliant house (attached). The subject property is located in the R-1 Single 
Family Residential District and borders the same to the north, south, east and west. Per the building plan, 
the nonconforming asymmetrical lot is 9,777 SF in area. The proposed new “spec-house” features 
“Chicago Common” colored brick with wood sidings in white or derivative of white.  The windows and 
eaves will match the siding. 
 
Process 

Pursuant to Title 14, Section 14-5-1: (B) Historic District: No alteration shall be allowed to, and no permits 
shall be issued for, the alteration, demolition, signage, or any other physical modifications of the exterior 
architectural appearance of any structure, building, site, or area located in a designated historic district 
without the rendering of a final decision by the commission on an application for a certificate of 
appropriateness. The final decision of the commission shall be advisory only. 
 
The Title 14, Section 14-5-2 (A) General Standards and (B) Design Standards to review can be found on 
Attachment 4. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness and Exhibits (packet) 
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Robbins Park Historic District Map 
Attachment 4 -  Title 14, Section 14-5-2: Criteria (A) and (B) 
Attachment 5 -  417 S. Elm Street Aerial View 
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 

 

 

 

Attachment 2



Attachment 3



Attachment 4        CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 

14-5-2: CRITERIA: 
 
All applications for a certificate of appropriateness shall conform to the applicable standards in this 
section. 

A. General Standards: 

1. Alterations that do not affect any essential architectural or historic features of a structure or building 
as viewed from a public or private street ordinarily should be permitted. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a structure, building, or site and its environment 
should not be destroyed. No alteration or demolition of any historic material or distinctive 
architectural feature should be permitted except when necessary to assure an economically viable 
use of a site. 

3. All structures, buildings, sites, and areas should be recognized as products of their own time. 
Alterations that have no historical basis and that seek to create an earlier appearance than the true 
age of the property are discouraged. 

4. Changes that may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a structure, building, or site and its environment. These changes may have acquired 
significance in their own right, and this significance should be recognized and respected when 
dealing with a specific architectural period. 

5. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a structure, 
building, site, or area should ordinarily be maintained and preserved. 

6. Deteriorated architectural features should be repaired rather than replaced, whenever possible. In 
the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 
composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing 
architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by 
historic, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the availability of 
different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

7. The surface cleaning of structures and buildings should be undertaken with the gentlest means 
possible. Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the structures and buildings 
should be avoided. 

8. New structures or buildings, or alterations to sites should not be discouraged when such structures 
or alterations do not destroy significant historical or architectural features and are compatible with 
the size, scale, color, material, and character of the site, neighborhood, or environment. 

9. Whenever possible, new structures or buildings, or alterations to the existing conditions of sites 
should be done in such a manner that, if such new structures or alterations were to be removed in 
the future, the essential form and integrity of the original structure, building, site, or area would be 
unimpaired. 

10. Any permitted alteration or demolition should promote the purposes of this Title and general welfare 
of the Village and its residents. 
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11. Demolition should not be permitted if a structure, building, or site is economically viable in its 
present condition or could be economically viable after completion of appropriate alterations, even if 
demolition would permit a more profitable use of such site. 

B. Design Standards: 

1. Height: The height of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the height of the original 
landmark. The height of a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after any proposed 
alteration or construction within an historic district should be compatible with the style and character 
of the structure or building and with surrounding structures and buildings in an historic district. 

2. Relationship Between Mass And Open Space: The relationship between a landmark and adjacent 
open spaces after its alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. 
The relationship between a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship between surrounding structures, buildings 
and adjacent open spaces within such historic district. 

3. Relationship Among Height, Width And Scale: The relationship among the height, width, and scale of 
a landmark after alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. The 
relationship among height, width, and scale of a structure or building after an alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship among height, width, and scale of 
surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

4. Directional Expression: The directional expressions of a landmark after alteration, whether its vertical 
or horizontal positioning, should be compatible with the directional expression of the original 
landmark. The directional expression of a structure or building after alteration within an historic 
district should be compatible with the directional expression of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

5. Roof Shape: The roof shape of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the roof shape 
of the original landmark. The roof shape of a structure, building, or object after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the roof shape of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

6. Architectural Details, General Designs, Materials, Textures, And Colors: The architectural details, 
general design, materials, textures, and colors of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of the original landmark. 
The architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a structure or building 
after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the architectural details, general 
design, materials, textures, and colors of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic 
district. 

7. Landscape And Appurtenances: The landscape and appurtenances, including without limitation 
signs, fences, accessory structures, and pavings, of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the landscape and appurtenances of the original landmark. The landscape and appurtenances 
of a structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the 
landscape and appurtenances of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

8. Construction: New construction in an historic district should be compatible with the architectural 
styles, design standards and streetscapes within such historic districts. 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   January 13, 2020 

TO:   Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  304 S. Lincoln Street – Certificate of Appropriateness Application for Landmarked Home 

Review for a retroactive construction permit for garage work on existing home addition.  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Peter Coules, representing the owner of 304 S. 

Lincoln Street, requesting approval for a Certificate of Appropriateness (CoA) to change a design on the 

garage. Per the applicant, the garage is part of an addition not originally part of the local landmark 

consideration (Attachment 2). In 2016, the homeowner was approved for a CoA to construct a new porch 

and balustrade in the front yards, and a new screened porch and chimney in the side yard. Per Code, no 

alteration or permits shall be issued for any physical modifications of the exterior architectural 

appearance of a landmarked home without a CoA by the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC).   

Request and Analysis 

The subject property is on a corner lot facing S. Lincoln Street and W. Third Street, and features a 2.5-

story brick facade house constructed in 1885 in a Gothic Revival style. The home was locally landmarked 

in 2005 and has significant historic value due to its Gothic Revival style and embodies elements of design, 

detail, and materials. This request pertains to a raised header on the center garage door, by 2 feet, and 

includes an additional panel.  Per the applicant, the door continues to match the garage doors on each 

side.  The same bricks were used around the garage door as well. The home is located in the R-4 Single 

Family Residential District and borders the same to the north, east, west and south. 

Process 

Pursuant to Title 14, Section 14-5-5: (A) If the application is approved without conditions, the HPC shall 

issue the certificate of appropriateness permitting the Building Commissioner to proceed with other 

required reviews and approvals.  (B) If the application is approved with conditions, the HPC shall notify 

the applicant in writing and shall specify the conditions to be imposed and the reasons therefor in light of 

the criteria applicable to this Chapter. If the applicant notifies the HPC in writing that the conditions are 

acceptable, or if the applicant does not appeal the approval with conditions within the prescribed period 

of time, the HPC shall issue the certificate of appropriateness, subject to the conditions. (C) If the 

application is denied, the HPC shall notify the applicant in writing and shall specify the particulars in which 
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the application is inconsistent with the criteria applicable to this Chapter. If the HPC issues a denial of the 

certificate of appropriateness, no alteration shall be permitted to proceed, and no permits shall be issued 

for, the proposed alteration, demolition, signage, or any other physical modifications of, the designated 

landmark. 

The Title 14, Section 14-5-2 (A) General Standards and (B) Design Standards to review can be found on 

Attachment 6. 

Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness and Exhibits (packet) 
Attachment 2 -  Exhibits from 2005 Approved Designation as Landmark Building 
Attachment 3 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 4 -  Aerial View of 304 S. Lincoln Street 
Attachment 5 -  Street View of 304 S. Lincoln Street 
Attachment 6 -  Title 14, Section 14-5-2: Criteria (A) and (B) 
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Attachment 3: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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Attachment 6        CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 

14-5-2: CRITERIA: 
 
All applications for a certificate of appropriateness shall conform to the applicable standards in this 
section. 

A. General Standards: 

1. Alterations that do not affect any essential architectural or historic features of a structure or building 
as viewed from a public or private street ordinarily should be permitted. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a structure, building, or site and its environment 
should not be destroyed. No alteration or demolition of any historic material or distinctive 
architectural feature should be permitted except when necessary to assure an economically viable 
use of a site. 

3. All structures, buildings, sites, and areas should be recognized as products of their own time. 
Alterations that have no historical basis and that seek to create an earlier appearance than the true 
age of the property are discouraged. 

4. Changes that may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a structure, building, or site and its environment. These changes may have acquired 
significance in their own right, and this significance should be recognized and respected when 
dealing with a specific architectural period. 

5. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a structure, 
building, site, or area should ordinarily be maintained and preserved. 

6. Deteriorated architectural features should be repaired rather than replaced, whenever possible. In 
the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 
composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing 
architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by 
historic, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the availability of 
different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

7. The surface cleaning of structures and buildings should be undertaken with the gentlest means 
possible. Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the structures and buildings 
should be avoided. 

8. New structures or buildings, or alterations to sites should not be discouraged when such structures 
or alterations do not destroy significant historical or architectural features and are compatible with 
the size, scale, color, material, and character of the site, neighborhood, or environment. 

9. Whenever possible, new structures or buildings, or alterations to the existing conditions of sites 
should be done in such a manner that, if such new structures or alterations were to be removed in 
the future, the essential form and integrity of the original structure, building, site, or area would be 
unimpaired. 

10. Any permitted alteration or demolition should promote the purposes of this Title and general welfare 
of the Village and its residents. 
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11. Demolition should not be permitted if a structure, building, or site is economically viable in its 
present condition or could be economically viable after completion of appropriate alterations, even if 
demolition would permit a more profitable use of such site. 

B. Design Standards: 

1. Height: The height of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the height of the original 
landmark. The height of a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after any proposed 
alteration or construction within an historic district should be compatible with the style and character 
of the structure or building and with surrounding structures and buildings in an historic district. 

2. Relationship Between Mass And Open Space: The relationship between a landmark and adjacent 
open spaces after its alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. 
The relationship between a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship between surrounding structures, buildings 
and adjacent open spaces within such historic district. 

3. Relationship Among Height, Width And Scale: The relationship among the height, width, and scale of 
a landmark after alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. The 
relationship among height, width, and scale of a structure or building after an alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship among height, width, and scale of 
surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

4. Directional Expression: The directional expressions of a landmark after alteration, whether its vertical 
or horizontal positioning, should be compatible with the directional expression of the original 
landmark. The directional expression of a structure or building after alteration within an historic 
district should be compatible with the directional expression of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

5. Roof Shape: The roof shape of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the roof shape 
of the original landmark. The roof shape of a structure, building, or object after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the roof shape of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

6. Architectural Details, General Designs, Materials, Textures, And Colors: The architectural details, 
general design, materials, textures, and colors of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of the original landmark. 
The architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a structure or building 
after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the architectural details, general 
design, materials, textures, and colors of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic 
district. 

7. Landscape And Appurtenances: The landscape and appurtenances, including without limitation 
signs, fences, accessory structures, and pavings, of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the landscape and appurtenances of the original landmark. The landscape and appurtenances 
of a structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the 
landscape and appurtenances of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

8. Construction: New construction in an historic district should be compatible with the architectural 
styles, design standards and streetscapes within such historic districts. 
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MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commission 
 
CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
 Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development 
 Chan Yu, Village Planner 
 
FROM:  Michael D’Onofrio, Consultant 
 
DATE:    December 10, 2019 
 
RE: Historic Preservation Regulations Review 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
 
During the summer of 2018 a review of the Village’s historic preservation regulations was conducted.  
Two main objectives of the analysis were to examine the Certificate of Appropriateness and landmark 
withdrawal process.  As a result of this review, a report was prepared (Attachment 1, Village of Hinsdale 
Historic Preservation Regulations Review) and forwarded to the Village Board for comment.  
 
Based on the comments of the Village Board it recommended that the Historic Preservation Commission 
(HPC) review a number of the historic preservation regulations and policies outlined in Chapter 14-5 
Certificate Appropriateness of the Village Code.  In May 2019, the HPC received a memo from Village 
Planner Chan Yu, identifying the historic preservation items that the Village Board requested the HPC 
review. Subsequent to this meeting Chair Bohnen had several meetings with me to further refine the 
scope of the items to be reviewed by the HPC. 
 
Based on the steps described above, it was determined that the following historic preservation related 
items would be examined by the HPC. 

1. Certificate of Appropriateness Process for Downtown Historic District 
2. Certificate of Appropriateness Process for Robbins Park Historic District 
3. HPC Authority over Certificate of Appropriateness  
4. Withdrawal of Landmark Designation 
5. Establishment of New Landmark Designation 

 
Process 
 
Beginning on September 4, 2019, the HPC held three special meetings to analyze the five above listed 
items.  In addition to September 4th, meetings were also held on October 29th and November 18th 
(Attachment 2 includes agendas for each meeting). Each item was addressed in generally the same 
fashion which included review and discussion of the following components: (1)background; (2)current 
regulations; (3)existing review/approval process; (4)associated data; and, (4)issues to consider. 
Following these steps, the HPC then developed a series of recommendations, which are described in the 
remainder of this memorandum.  
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1. Certificate of Appropriateness Process for Downtown Historic District – Recommendations. 

a. HPC should review all applications for exterior improvements requiring a permit. 
b. HPC review should be advisory only.  The HPC review should be conducted prior to the 

Plan Commission’s, with it’s recommendation subsequently being forwarded to the Plan 
Commission.   

c. HPC review should be based on the Exterior Appearance Review Application used by the 
Plan Commission (Attachment 3). It should not be reviewed under the General and 
Design Standards established in Section 14-5-2 of the Village Code (Attachment 4).  

d. HPC recommendation should be forwarded to the Village Board as part of any agenda 
packet sent to it, following Plan Commission action.  
 

2.&3. Certificate of Appropriateness Process for Robbins Park Historic District  &  HPC Authority over 
Certificate of Appropriateness – (Note for discussion purposes the HPC discussed these two items 
and developed one set of recommendations) Recommendations. 

a.  A new component to the CofA process should be added.  This would be titled as the 
“Historic Preservation Design Advisory Meeting.”  This meeting would occur at the front 
end of the review process and include an initial meeting with the property owner and 
the design professional.  The intent of this meeting is for the applicant to gain an 
understanding of the type of design elements the Commission would like on a new 
building.  As part of this new part of the process the following should be required. 

i. Require a new application to be submitted (Attachment 5). Along with the 
application the following information must be included: 

1. Proof of ownership; application must be signed by applicant and owner, 
as well as being notarized; 

2. Submittal of color photos of the building to be demolished; and, 
3. Current topographic survey, including location, size and type of trees on 

the parcel.  
ii. Following the Design Advisory meeting, there would be a minimum 120 day 

period before plans could be considered by the HPC for a CofA. 
iii. It would be mandatory that the property owner be present at the Design 

Advisory meeting. 
e. Any type of improvement that is seen from the public right-of-way would  require 

review. In addition to the typical types of improvements normally constructed – 
additions, exterior building alterations, the HPC specifically mentioned the following 
improvements also require review: fountains, streetscape, landscaping, horse blocks 
and flagpoles.   

f. Any decision should be accompanied with written Findings. There was discussion among 
the Commission members as to the timeframe for completing Findings.  The consensus 
being they should be completed within 30 days of the hearing.  However, members 
expressed a desire to complete  Findings the same night as the hearing. 

g. The existing Application for a CofA should be revised (Attachment 6).  The most 
significant revision would be to add a new section - Section III, Standards for Certificate 
of Appropriateness.  This section incorporates the Design Standards established in 
Section 14-5-2 of the Village Code. 

h. In the case where the HPC approves a CofA and there are subsequent revisions to the 
plans, they should reviewed and signed off on by the Commission.  

i. The decision of the HPC should remain advisory. 
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4. Withdrawal of Landmark Designation – Recommendation 
a. With the exception of the following minor code modification, it is recommended no changes 

be made. 
b. Section 14-4-1 of the Village Code should be amended to include a sixth condition (f).  The 

condition would prohibit withdrawal of a landmark if it has taken advantage of the Property 
Tax AssessmentType equation here. Freeze Program. 

 
6. Establishment of New Landmark Designation – Recommendation 

a. The HPC did not see the need for a new landmark designation.  Rather it was pointed 
out that the Hinsdale Historical Society has established an honorific landmark 
designation program.  It did mention that it would offer any assistance to the Historical 
Society if it was requested. 

 
Attachments 
1 - Village of Hinsdale Historic Preservation Regulations Review 
2 – HPC Special Meeting Agendas 
3 - Exterior Appearance Review Application 
4 – Section 14-5-2 of Village Code 
5 - Application for Historic Preservation Design Advisory Meeting 
6 - Application for Certificate of Appropriateness 
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MEMORANDUM 

DATE:       October 2, 2018 

TO:            Village Board 

FROM:      Community Development Director Robb McGinnis 

SUBJECT:  Historic Preservation Regulations Review 

 

Earlier this summer a review of the Village’s Historic Preservation regulations was conducted.  Two of 

the main objectives of the analysis was to examine the Certificate of Appropriateness and landmark 

withdrawal processes.  As a result of this review a report was prepared (See Attachment A, Village of 

Hinsdale Historic Preservation Regulations Review). 

Recently a meeting was held with Village President Cauley, Trustee Stifflear, HPC Chair Bohnen, Village 

Manager and myself to discuss the report and consider implementation of the recommendations.  As a 

result of these discussions, it is being suggested that a number of recommendations from the report be 

implemented. The remainder of this memorandum will identify and describe the proposed amendments 

to the historic preservation regulations.  The proposed changes to the regulations are broken down into 

two categories, Certificates of Appropriateness and Landmark Withdrawal.  The final section of the 

report addresses establishment of a new type of landmark designation. 

Certificate of Appropriateness 

1. Costs associated with consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (CofA) – currently the 

fee for a CofA is $50.  It is recommended that a new fee amount of $800 be established to cover 

the Village’s costs associated with CofA.  Of this total $350 would be the application fee and 

$450 would be an escrow to cover the costs related to the preparation and publication cost of 

legal notice, recording and preparation of minutes and, drafting of formal findings.  

 

2. Properties to be subject to a CofA review – CofA reviews will be limited to only the following 

types of properties: 

a. Contributing structures in the Robbins Park Historic District (232 properties). 

b. Contributing structures in the Downtown Historic District (61 properties). 

c. Individually designated landmarks (28 properties).  

Based on this change, it would eliminate 149 non-contributing structures in the two historic 

districts from being subject to CofA reviews.  This includes 136 structures in the Robbins Park 

and 13 in Downtown Districts.  The 13 properties in the Downtown Historic District include the 

following: 

1) 18-20 E. First St.   

2) 22 E. First St.  

3) 18 W. First St. 

4) 22 W. First St. 

5) 12 E. Hinsdale Ave. 
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6) 26 – 26 ½ E. Hinsdale Ave.  

7) 40 E. Hinsdale Ave. 

8) 13 S. Lincoln St. 

9) 40-46 Village Ct. 

10) 45 S. Washington St. 

11) 48 S. Washington St. 

12) 50 S. Washington St. 

13) 120 S. Washington St. 

 

3. Additional CofA relief for contributing structures and individually designated structures – only 

proposed improvements that are visible from the public right-of-way are subject to CofA review 

by the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC).  All other CofA requests would be subject to 

review and approval by staff. Patios and fences would not require a CofA.   

 

4. Appeals of HPC denials of CofA – it is being recommended that the HPC has final approval 

authority over granting or denying all CofA.  Currently, its authority is final only in the case of 

individual historic landmarks; HPC authority is only advisory for structures in the two historic 

districts. 

 

Although expanding the HPC decision making authority to include all final approvals, an appeal 

process to the Village Board is necessary.  To accomplish this it is recommended that specific 

standards for considering appeals be established.  The standards include the following: 

a. No new evidence can be presented in front of the Village Board. 

b. An applicant must file an appeal within 30 days of the date of the HPC decision. 

c. There must have been a defect or procedural error in the HPC approval process. 

d. The manifest weight of the evidence is such that the Village Board could not overturn 

the HPC decision. 

The rationale behind the standards is to limit appeals to the Village Board to only those based 

on procedural errors and the like.  Under these standards, appeals based on an applicant’s 

desire to have the Village Board overturn an unfavorable HPC decision would no longer be 

possible.   

 

Withdrawal of Landmark Designation 

1. Conditions for Withdrawal – it is being recommended that Section 14-4-1 Conditions for 

Withdrawal be amended to add the following requirements. More specifically, the following 

items relate to a withdrawal based on financial hardship. 

a. Submittal of the following documents. 

i. Federal Tax returns from the previous three (3) calendar years. 

ii. Proof that the property has been on the market for a minimum of the previous 

12 months. 

b. The property has not benefitted from the State of Illinois Property Tax Assessment 

Freeze Program. 

 

Attachment 1



3 
 

Finally, with respect to process, requests for withdrawal will be reviewed by the Village Manager 

and the chair of the Zoning Board of Appeals with their recommendation subsequently 

considered by the Village Board.  This differs from the current procedure in which the HPC 

considers withdrawal requests, with its recommendations then forwarded to the Village Board. 

 

New Landmark Designation 

1. Establish a new landmark category – in order to accomplish the dual goals of 

encouraging property owners to landmark their properties and at the same time 

lessening the requirements governing them, i.e. withdrawal, it is recommended that a 

new category of landmarks be established.  This would be an “honorary landmark 

designation”.  The benefit of this type of honorific status would allow for historic 

designation with the being subject to CofA and withdrawal requirements. 

 

2. Standards for granting honorary landmark – at a public hearing the HPC shall review all 

information presented to it and adopt a recommendation as to whether a property 

meets the following criteria: 

a. The nominated structure has a feature or features its exterior architectural 

appearance that should be protected and preserved; 

b. Any other pertinent comments, or information related to the property. 

If the HPC determines that the above criteria are met, it can then grant honorary 

landmark status to the property. 
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MEETING AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

Wednesday, September 4, 2019 
6:30 P.M. 

MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 
(Tentative & Subject to Change) 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. MINUTES – Review and approval of the minutes from the July 10, 2019 special meeting. 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS  

a)   Case HPC-05-2019 – 719 S. Park Ave. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 
demolish and construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic District.  

b)  Case HPC-07-2019 – 322 E. Chicago Ave. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 
construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic District.  

 
5.   DISCUSSION 

a)  Historic Preservation Commission Regulations Review – Certificate of Appropriateness – 
Downtown Historic District 

 
6.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
7.    OTHER BUSINESS 
  
8.    ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend any meetings and who require certain 
accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in these meetings, or who 
have questions regarding accessibility of the meetings or the facilities, are requested to contact 
Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to allow the 
Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.  website:  
www.villageofhinsdale.org 
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MEETING AGENDA 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

Tuesday, October 29, 2019 
6:30 P.M. 

MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 
(Tentative & Subject to Change) 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3.   DISCUSSION 

a)  Historic Preservation Commission Regulations Review – Certificate of Appropriateness – 
Downtown Historic District 

 
4.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
5.    OTHER BUSINESS 
  
6.    ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend any meetings and who require certain 
accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in these meetings, or who 
have questions regarding accessibility of the meetings or the facilities, are requested to contact 
Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to allow the 
Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.  website:  
www.villageofhinsdale.org 
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MEETING AGENDA 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

Monday, November 18, 2019 
6:30 P.M. 

MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 
(Tentative & Subject to Change) 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL  

 
3. MINUTES – Review and approval of the minutes from the October 29, 2019 special HPC meeting. 

 
4.   DISCUSSION 

a)   Historic Preservation Commission Title 14 Regulations Review – Certificate of 
Appropriateness – Robbins Park Historic District 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
6.    OTHER BUSINESS 
  
7.    ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend any meetings and who require certain 
accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in these meetings, or who 
have questions regarding accessibility of the meetings or the facilities, are requested to contact 
Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to allow the 
Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.  website:  
www.villageofhinsdale.org 
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
DEPARTMENT 

EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND 
SITE PLAN REVIEW CRITERIA 

 

 
 

Address of proposed request:  __________________________________________________ 
 
REVIEW CRITERIA 
 

Section 11-606 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Exterior appearance review.  The exterior appearance 

review process is intended to protect, preserve, and enhance the character and architectural heritage and 

quality of the Village, to protect, preserve, and enhance property values, and to promote the health, safety, and 

welfare of the Village and its residents.  Please note that Subsection Standards for building permits refers to 

Subsection 11-605E Standards and considerations for design permit review.   

***PLEASE NOTE***   If this is a non-residential property within 250 feet of a single-family 

residential district, additional notification requirements are necessary.  Please contact the Village 

Planner for a description of the additional requirements.  

 

FEES for Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Review: 

Standard Application: $600.00 

Within 250 feet of a Single-Family Residential District: $800 

 
Below are the criteria that will be used by the Plan Commission, Zoning and Public Safety 
Committee and Board of Trustees in reviewing Exterior Appearance Review requests.  Please 
respond to each criterion as it relates to the application.  Please use an additional sheet of paper 
to respond to questions if needed. 
 
1. Open spaces.  The quality of the open space between buildings and in setback spaces 

between street and facades.   
 
 
 

2. Materials.  The quality of materials and their relationship to those in existing adjacent 
structures.  

 
 
 

3. General design.  The quality of the design in general and its relationship to the overall 
character of neighborhood.  
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4. General site development.  The quality of the site development in terms of landscaping, 
recreation, pedestrian access, auto access, parking, servicing of the property, and impact on 
vehicular traffic patterns and conditions on-site and in the vicinity of the site, and the retention 
of trees and shrubs to the maximum extent possible.   

 
 
 
 

5. Height.  The height of the proposed buildings and structures shall be visually compatible with 
adjacent buildings.  
 
 
 

6. Proportion of front façade.  The relationship of the width to the height of the front elevation 
shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually 
related.   

 
 
 

7. Proportion of openings.  The relationship of the width to the height of windows shall be visually 
compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which the building is visually related.  

 
 
 

8. Rhythm of solids to voids in front facades.  The relationship of solids to voids in the front 
façade of a building shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to 
which it is visually related.   

 
 
 

9. Rhythm of spacing and buildings on streets.  The relationship of a building or structure to the 
open space between it and adjoining buildings or structures shall be visually compatible with 
the buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related.   

 
 
 

10. Rhythm of entrance porch and other projections.  The relationship of entrances and other 
projections to sidewalks shall be visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, and 
places to which it is visually related.   

 
 
 

11. Relationship of materials and texture.  The relationship of the materials and texture of the 
façade shall be visually compatible with the predominant materials to be used in the buildings 
and structures to which it is visually related.   
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12. Roof shapes.  The roof shape of a building shall be visually compatible with the buildings to 
which it is visually related.   

 
 
 
 

13. Walls of continuity.  Building facades and appurtenances such as walls, fences, and landscape 
masses shall, when it is a characteristic of the area, form cohesive walls of enclosure along a 
street to ensure visual compatibility with the buildings, public ways, and places to which such 
elements are visually related.   

 
 
 
 

14. Scale of building.  The size and mass of buildings and structures in relation to open spaces, 
windows, door openings, porches, and balconies shall be visually compatible with the 
buildings, public ways, and places to which they are visually related.   

 
 
 
 

15. Directional expression of front elevation.  The buildings shall be visually compatible with the 
buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related in its directional character, 
whether this be vertical character, horizontal character, or nondirectional character.   

 
 
 
 

16. Special consideration for existing buildings.  For existing buildings, the Plan Commission and 
the Board of Trustees shall consider the availability of materials, technology, and 
craftsmanship to duplicate existing styles, patterns, textures, and overall detailing.   

 

 

 

 

 
REVIEW CRITERIA – Site Plan Review 
 Below are the criteria that will be used by the Plan Commission and Board of Trustees in 

determining is the application does not meet the requirements for Site Plan Approval.  Briefly 
describe how this application will not do the below criteria.  Please respond to each criterion as it 
relates to the application.  Please use an additional sheet of paper to respond to questions if 
needed. 

 
 Section 11-604 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Site Plan Review.  The site plan review 

process recognizes that even those uses and developments that have been determined to be 
generally suitable for location in a particular district are capable of adversely affecting the 
purposes for which this code was enacted unless careful consideration is given to critical design 
elements.   
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1. The site plan fails to adequately meet specified standards required by the Zoning Code with 
respect to the proposed use or development, including special use standards where 
applicable. 

 
  
 

2. The proposed site plan interferes with easements and rights-of-way.   
 
 
 

3. The proposed site plan unreasonably destroys, damages, detrimentally modifies, or interferes 
with the enjoyment of significant natural, topographical, or physical features of the site.   

 
 

 
4. The proposed site plan is unreasonably injurious or detrimental to the use and enjoyment of 

surrounding property. 
 
 

 
5. The proposed site plan creates undue traffic congestion or hazards in the public streets, or the 

circulation elements of the proposed site plan unreasonably creates hazards to safety on or off 
site or disjointed, inefficient pedestrian or vehicular circulation paths on or off the site.   

 
 
 
 
6. The screening of the site does not provide adequate shielding from or for nearby uses. 
 
 
 
 
7. The proposed structures or landscaping are unreasonably lacking amenity in relation to, or are 

incompatible with, nearby structures and uses.   
 
 
 
 

8. In the case of site plans submitted in connection with an application for a special use permit, 
the proposed site plan makes inadequate provision for the creation or preservation of open 
space or for its continued maintenance.  

 
 
 

9. The proposed site plan creates unreasonable drainage or erosion problems or fails to fully and 
satisfactorily integrate the site into the overall existing and planned ordinance system serving 
the community.  
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10. The proposed site plan places unwarranted or unreasonable burdens on specified utility 
systems serving the site or area or fails to fully and satisfactorily integrate the site’s utilities into 
the overall existing and planned utility system serving the Village.   

 
 
 
 

11. The proposed site plan does not provide for required public uses designated on the Official 
Map.  

 
 

 
12. The proposed site plan otherwise adversely affects the public health, safety, or general 

welfare.   
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Attachment 4        CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 

14-5-2: CRITERIA: 
 
All applications for a certificate of appropriateness shall conform to the applicable standards in this 
section. 

A. General Standards: 

1. Alterations that do not affect any essential architectural or historic features of a structure or building 
as viewed from a public or private street ordinarily should be permitted. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a structure, building, or site and its environment 
should not be destroyed. No alteration or demolition of any historic material or distinctive 
architectural feature should be permitted except when necessary to assure an economically viable 
use of a site. 

3. All structures, buildings, sites, and areas should be recognized as products of their own time. 
Alterations that have no historical basis and that seek to create an earlier appearance than the true 
age of the property are discouraged. 

4. Changes that may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a structure, building, or site and its environment. These changes may have acquired 
significance in their own right, and this significance should be recognized and respected when 
dealing with a specific architectural period. 

5. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a structure, 
building, site, or area should ordinarily be maintained and preserved. 

6. Deteriorated architectural features should be repaired rather than replaced, whenever possible. In 
the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 
composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing 
architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by 
historic, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the availability of 
different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

7. The surface cleaning of structures and buildings should be undertaken with the gentlest means 
possible. Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the structures and buildings 
should be avoided. 

8. New structures or buildings, or alterations to sites should not be discouraged when such structures 
or alterations do not destroy significant historical or architectural features and are compatible with 
the size, scale, color, material, and character of the site, neighborhood, or environment. 

9. Whenever possible, new structures or buildings, or alterations to the existing conditions of sites 
should be done in such a manner that, if such new structures or alterations were to be removed in 
the future, the essential form and integrity of the original structure, building, site, or area would be 
unimpaired. 

10. Any permitted alteration or demolition should promote the purposes of this Title and general welfare 
of the Village and its residents. 
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11. Demolition should not be permitted if a structure, building, or site is economically viable in its 
present condition or could be economically viable after completion of appropriate alterations, even if 
demolition would permit a more profitable use of such site. 

B. Design Standards: 

1. Height: The height of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the height of the original 
landmark. The height of a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after any proposed 
alteration or construction within an historic district should be compatible with the style and character 
of the structure or building and with surrounding structures and buildings in an historic district. 

2. Relationship Between Mass And Open Space: The relationship between a landmark and adjacent 
open spaces after its alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. 
The relationship between a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship between surrounding structures, buildings 
and adjacent open spaces within such historic district. 

3. Relationship Among Height, Width And Scale: The relationship among the height, width, and scale of 
a landmark after alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. The 
relationship among height, width, and scale of a structure or building after an alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship among height, width, and scale of 
surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

4. Directional Expression: The directional expressions of a landmark after alteration, whether its vertical 
or horizontal positioning, should be compatible with the directional expression of the original 
landmark. The directional expression of a structure or building after alteration within an historic 
district should be compatible with the directional expression of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

5. Roof Shape: The roof shape of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the roof shape 
of the original landmark. The roof shape of a structure, building, or object after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the roof shape of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

6. Architectural Details, General Designs, Materials, Textures, And Colors: The architectural details, 
general design, materials, textures, and colors of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of the original landmark. 
The architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a structure or building 
after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the architectural details, general 
design, materials, textures, and colors of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic 
district. 

7. Landscape And Appurtenances: The landscape and appurtenances, including without limitation 
signs, fences, accessory structures, and pavings, of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the landscape and appurtenances of the original landmark. The landscape and appurtenances 
of a structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the 
landscape and appurtenances of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

8. Construction: New construction in an historic district should be compatible with the architectural 
styles, design standards and streetscapes within such historic districts. 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

19 East Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521-3489 

(630) 789-7000 or (630) 789-7030 
 

APPLICATION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION DESIGN ADVISORY MEETING 
In order to undertake any exterior alterations, additions, or demolition, owners of Designated 
Landmarks or buildings in Designated Historic Districts must obtain a Certificate of 
Appropriateness from the Hinsdale Historic Preservation Commission.  This certificate must be 
obtained prior to issuance of a building permit.  Conditions placed on Certificates for properties 
located within a designated Historic District are non-binding, however, properties designated as a 
Local Landmark must adhere to the conditions of the Certificate of Appropriateness as it is binding. 
The Commission meets the first Tuesday of each month.   
 
This process begins with an initial meeting between the HPC and the property Owner prior to 
beginning the design process to help educate and advise Owners of all important aspects of 
design and construction within the historic districts.  This meeting is to review the property from a 
preservation, architectural and streetscape perspective and to educate the Owner so they may 
better understand the historical significance of the district and their responsibility to protect the 
essential character of the neighborhood. 
 
Once the Owner has appeared before the commission there will be a 120 day moratorium before a 
Certificate of Appropriateness application will be accepted by the Village of Hinsdale for review.  
120 days begins the night of the meeting that the Owner attends.  The Owner’s attendance is 
mandatory however it is allowable and advisable to have other project representatives attend as 
desired.  It is preferred to have the retained design professional also in attendance but not 
required.   
 
In preparation for the initial meeting the Owner may wish to familiarize themselves with the Design 
Guidelines provided by the Village at the link below.   
 
https://www.villageofhinsdale.org/Final%20Design%20Review%20Guidelines%2010.27.2011.pdf 

 
*As you begin this process it is advised that the Owner review the application for Certificate of 
Appropriateness to better understand what the HPC will consider and discuss related to that 
submittal. 
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INSTRUCTIONS 
All applicants must complete all sections of this application form.  Incomplete applications 
will not be processed, and a public hearing will not be scheduled, until the application is 
complete and complies with all applicable requirements of Title XIV of the Village Code of 
Hinsdale.  If a section of this application form is not applicable, please write "Not Applicable" 
or "N/A" in the appropriate place. 
 
 

Submit completed packets to the Staff Secretary/Village Planner per attached submittal deadlines.  
The thirty-two (32) (<this is too many!) packets must be collated to include the following in a format 
no greater than 9 x 12. 
 

 Application: Complete with notarized certification. 
 Proof of Ownership: Submit document indicating official ownership of property. 
 Photos: Submit photos of the existing structure as viewed from the Right of Way (ROW).  

Also include photos of the immediate adjacent structures and a view down the block from 
each street corner. Photos must be color.  They should be no larger than 4” x 6” in size and 
no smaller than 3” x 5”.  Polaroid’s and slides are not acceptable.  Photos should be 
numbered or labeled and accompanied by a descriptive list. 

 Plat of Survey: A scaled copy of an accurate / current Plat of Survey.  All portions must be 
legible. IF a topographical survey with tree size and location and site grading is available 
please submit one as well. 

 
Note: If Ownership of property changes between the Design Advisory Meeting and the Certificate 
of Appropriateness hearing a new submittal will be required by the new Owners and the 
moratorium resets at 120 days.  It is the Applicants responsibility to inform the village of this 
change as soon as they are aware of the change. 
 
 

Attachment 5



 3 

 
 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

APPLICATION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION DESIGN ADVISORY MEETING 
 
The undersigned (the "Owner") hereby makes application pursuant to Title XIV of the Village Code 
of Hinsdale, as amended, for a Design Advisory Meeting for the building, structure or site 
described below.  The Owner certifies to the Village of Hinsdale that the following facts are true 
and correct: 
 
Address of Property under review:_________________________________________________ 
Property Identification Number: ___________________________________________________ 
Name of Primary Contact:             
Phone Number of Primary Contact:          
 
I. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
1. Applicants Name: __________________________________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________________________________________ 
           _________________________________________________________________ 

Telephone Number: ________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Owner of Record (if different from applicant): _____________________________________ 
 Address: _________________________________________________________________ 
        ________________________________________________________________ 
 Telephone Number: ________________________________________________________ 
 
3. Others involved in project (include, name, address and telephone number): 
 Architect: _________________________________________________________________ 
                   ________________________________________________________________ 
 Attorney:  _________________________________________________________________ 
         ________________________________________________________________ 
 Builder:    _________________________________________________________________ 
         ________________________________________________________________ 

Engineer: _________________________________________________________________ 
         ________________________________________________________________ 
 
II. SITE INFORMATION 
 

1. Describe the existing conditions of the property:  __________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 
2. Property Designation: 
 
 Listed on the National Register of Historic Places? _____YES     ______NO 
 
 Listed as a Local Designated Landmark?     ________YES     ______NO 
 
 Listed as a Contributing Structure?      ________YES  ______NO 
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3. Description of work intended.  (Please submit a brief description of your intended or 

proposed construction, alterations and/or additions). 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. Successive Applications.  Has all or any part of the property been the subject of 

another application for a Certificate of Appropriateness under Title XIV of the Village 
Code of Hinsdale within the last two years? 

  
______ No ______ Yes 
 
If yes, state the date of the formal hearing and a statement explaining any relevant 
evidence supporting, the reasons why the Applicant believes the Village should 
consider this application at this time, pursuant to Section 14-3-10 of the Village 
Code. _____________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
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CERTIFICATION 
 
The Owner and Applicant hereby acknowledges and agrees that: 
A. The statements contained in this application are true and correct to the best of the 

Applicant's knowledge and belief; 
B. The Applicant will provide the Village with all additional information, as required, 

prior to the consideration of, or action on, this application; 
C. The Applicant shall make the property that is the subject of this application available 

for inspection by the Village at reasonable times;  
D. If any information provided in this application changes or becomes incomplete or 

inapplicable for any reason following submission of this application, the Applicant 
shall submit a supplemental application or other acceptable written statement 
containing the new or corrected information as soon as practicable but not less than 
ten days following the change, and that failure to do so shall be grounds for denial 
of the application;  

E. If the Applicant fails to provide any of the requested information, or any other 
requested information by the Boards, Commissions, and/or Staff, then the applicant 
will not be considered; 

F.  The Applicant understand and acknowledges the Owner attendance is mandatory 
and that this application will be tabled to the next available meeting if the Owner is 
unable to attend for any reason; and 

G.  Beginning any demolition or structure revision or removal of architectural details 
prior to this meeting will result in an automatic denial of Certificate of 
Appropriateness. 

 
 INDIVIDUAL OWNERS       
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Signature of Applicant    Signature of Owner 
 
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Signature      Signature of Authorized Officer 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 
to before me this ______ day of 
 
_______________, _________.   ______________________________ 
       Notary Public 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

19 East Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521-3489 

(630) 789-7000 or (630) 789-7030 
 

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 
In order to undertake any exterior alterations, additions, or demolition, owners of Designated 
Landmarks   or   buildings   in   Designated   Historic   Districts   must   obtain   a   Certificate   of 
Appropriateness from the Hinsdale Historic Preservation Commission.  This certificate must be 
obtained prior to issuance of a building permit.   Conditions placed on Certificates for properties 
located within a designated Historic District are non-binding, however, properties designated as a 
Local Landmark must adhere to the conditions of the Certificate of Appropriateness as it is binding. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS 

All applicants must complete all sections of this application form.  Incomplete applications 
will not be processed, and a public hearing will not be scheduled, until the application is 
complete and complies with all applicable requirements of Title XIV of the Village Code of 
Hinsdale.  If a section of this application form is not applicable, please write "Not Applicable" 
or "N/A" in the appropriate place. 

 
The Commission meets the first Wednesday of each month. Submit completed packets to the Staff 
Secretary/Village Planner per attached submittal deadlines.  The twenty (20) packets must be 
collated and plans folded so that they do not exceed 9” x 12” of each of the following items must be 
submitted: 

 
Completed application with notarized certification. 

 
Photos and drawings shall include architectural details that have previously 
been recognized by the Commission as worthy of preservation.   Photos may be  
either color or black & white.  They should be no larger than 4” x 6” in size and no 
smaller than 3” x 5”.  Polaroid’s and slides are not acceptable.  Photos should be 
numbered or labeled and accompanied by a descriptive list. 
1)  All existing exterior elevations of the building under review. 
2)  Adjacent structures – include those structures adjacent and across the street from 

the building under review – include the building’s relationship to these structures. 
 

Accurate/current Plat of Survey.  All portions must be legible. 
Architectural drawings in 18”x24”, clearly depicting the proposed alterations or 
work in color.  Drawings should include the accurate drawings of the proposed site 
plan, floor plans, and all exterior elevations.  Indicate all areas of exterior demolition. 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPLICATION 

FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 
 
The undersigned (the "Applicant") hereby makes application pursuant to Title XIV of the Village 
Code of Hinsdale, as amended, for a Certificate of Appropriateness for the building, structure or 
site described below.  The Applicant certifies to the Village of Hinsdale that the following facts are 
true and correct: 

 
Address of Property under review:                                                                                                   
Property Identification Number:                                                                                                        

 
I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
1. Applicants Name:    

Address:    
 

Telephone Number:    
 
2. Owner of Record (if different from applicant):     

Address:    
 

Telephone Number:    
 
3. Others involved in project (include, name, address and telephone number): 

Architect:    
 

Attorney:     
 

Builder:    
 

Engineer:    
 
 
 
II. SITE INFORMATION 

 
1.  Describe the existing conditions of the property:     

 
 
 

2. Property Designation: 
 

Listed on the National Register of Historic Places?                 YES                 NO 

Listed as a Local Designated Landmark?                               YES                  NO 

Located in a Designated Historic District?                              YES                  NO 
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3. Description  of  work  proposed.    (Please  submit  a  description  of  the  proposed 
alterations and/or additions. Attach additional sheets, and photographs, as 
necessary). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Successive Applications.   Has all or any part of the property been the subject of 

another application for a Certificate of Appropriateness under Title XIV of the Village 
Code of Hinsdale within the last two years? 

 
  No   Yes 

 
If yes, state the date of the formal hearing and a statement explaining any relevant 
evidence supporting, the reasons why the Applicant believes the Village should 
consider this application at this time, pursuant to Section 14-3-10 of the Village 
Code.    
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5. TABLE OF COMPLIANCE 

 
 

Address of subject property:    
 

The following table is based on the   Zoning District. 
 

You  may  write   “N/A”   if   the 
application does NOT affect the 
building/subject property. 

Minimum Code 
Requirements 

Existing 
Development 

Proposed 
Development 

    

Lot Area (SF)    

Lot Depth    

Lot Width    

Building Height    

Number of Stories    

Front Yard Setback    

Corner Side Yard Setback    

Interior Side Yard Setback    

Rear Yard Setback    

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 
(F.A.R.)* 

   

Maximum Total Building 
Coverage* 

   

Maximum Total Lot 
Coverage* 

   

Parking Requirements    

Parking front yard setback    

Parking corner side yard 
setback 

   

Parking interior side yard 
setback 

   

Parking rear yard setback    

Loading Requirements    

Accessory Structure 
Information 

   

* Must provide actual square footage number and percentage. 
 
 

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village’s authority, if any, to approve the 
application despite such lack of compliance:    
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CERTIFICATION 
 
The Applicant hereby acknowledges and agrees that: 

 

A. The statements contained in this application are true and correct to the best of the 
Applicant's knowledge and belief; 

 

B. The Applicant will provide the Village with all additional information, as required, 
prior to the consideration of, or action on, this application; 

 

C. The Applicant shall make the property that is the subject of this application available 
for inspection by the Village at reasonable times; 

 

D. If any information provided in this application changes or becomes incomplete or 
inapplicable for any reason following submission of this application, the Applicant 
shall submit a supplemental application or other acceptable written statement 
containing the new or corrected information as soon as practicable but not less than 
ten days following the change, and that failure to do so shall be grounds for denial 
of the application; and 

 

E. If the Applicant fails to provide any of the requested information, or any other 
requested information by the Boards, Commissions, and/or Staff, then the applicant 
will not be considered. 

 
 
  INDIVIDUAL OWNERS 

 
 
Signature of Applicant Signature of Applicant 

 
  CORPORATION 

 
 
 
Signature of Applicant's President Signature of Applicant’s Secretary 

 
 
  PARTNERSHIP 

 
 
Signature of Applicant Signature of Applicant 

 
 
 
Signature of Applicant Signature of Applicant 

 
LAND TRUST OTHER 

 
 
 
Signature Signature of Authorized Officer 

 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 
to before me this   day of 

 
  ,   . 

 

 
Notary Public 
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